
Town of Simsbury 
933 Hopmeadow Street        Simsbury, Connecticut 06070 

 
 

 
 

Watch Board of Finance Meetings LIVE and rebroadcast on Comcast Channels 96, 1090, Frontier Channel 
6071 and LIVE streamed or on-demand at www.simsburytv.org 

 
Board of Finance 

Regular Meeting – March 19, 2024 – 5:45 p.m. 
Main Meeting Room, Simsbury Town Hall 

*Meeting May Be Held in a Virtual Only Format if Inclement Weather is Expected on Day of Meeting* 
         
 
CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC AUDIENCE 

PRESENTATION 
a) Board of Selectman Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Budget Presentation (Pages 1-2) 

 
ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

b) Budget Discussion  
 

REVIEW OF MINUTES 
c) March 5, 2024 Regular Meeting (Pages 3-6) 

 
ADJOURN 

Board of Finance Meeting Schedule: 
3/21/24, 4/3/24, 4/4/24, 4/16/24, 4/17/24, 5/14/24, 6/18/24, 7/16/24, 8/20/24, 9/17/24, 10/15/24, 
11/12/24, 12/17/24, 1/14/25 

http://www.simsburytv.org/


Adopted Proposed
FY2024 FY 2025 Dollar Percentage

Board of Selectmen 31,679,397         28,740,677              (2,938,720)     -9.28%
Debt Service & Capital 7,806,810           8,915,868                1,109,058      14.21%

Board of Education 81,576,437         85,217,644              3,641,207      4.46%
Non-Public School 605,699              588,724                   (16,975)          -2.80%

Total Appropriations 121,668,343       123,462,913            1,794,570      1.47%

LESS ESTIMATED NON-CURRENT YEAR TAX REVENUES 17,154,066         12,721,197              (4,432,869)     -25.84%

BALANCE TO BE RAISED 104,514,277       110,741,716            6,227,439      5.96%

ACTUAL  ACTUAL  BUDGET PROJECTED  ESTIMATED 
REVENUE  REVENUE  REVENUE REVENUE  REVENUE 

GENERAL FUND REVENUES 2023 12/31/2023 2024 6/30/2024 2025
Property Taxes - Prior Year & Interest & Liens 777,275              407,804                   430,000         500,000            580,000          
Intergovernmental Revenues & Payments in Lieu of Taxes 9,227,086           2,491,450                9,196,826      9,895,742         7,884,731       
Investment Income 1,617,668           1,261,977                800,000         2,588,464         1,300,000       
Charges for Goods & Services & Misc 1,994,664           1,098,186                1,798,290      1,896,084         1,829,701       
Fines & Forfeitures 12,596                6,014                       8,200             10,039              9,972              
Rental of Town Owned Property 181,040              91,033                     114,300         131,900            114,900          
Licenses & Permits 920,566              312,954                   740,050         721,646            741,886          
Operating Transfers In (Belden Trust) 26,960                27,380                     27,380           27,380              28,350            
Operating Transfers In (Capital Project Funds) 822,029              281,187                   281,187         281,187            231,657          
Operating Transfers In (ARPA Fund) 3,757,833           3,757,833                3,757,833      3,757,833         -                  
Total General Fund Revenue Budget 19,337,716         9,735,818                17,154,066    19,810,275       12,721,197     

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2024 FY 2024 FY 2025
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION ACTUAL 12/31/2023 BUDGET 6/30/2024 PROPOSED
General Government 1,647,264           846,862                   1,614,485      1,543,069         1,634,688       
Financial Services & Information Technology 1,706,839           840,919                   1,763,376      1,718,853         1,861,877       
Planning & Development 751,236              368,076                   791,403         763,517            851,676          
Public Safety 6,040,144           3,175,669                6,553,196      6,493,711         6,643,957       
Public Works & Engineering 4,749,325           2,279,733                4,933,286      4,592,384         4,974,983       
Health and Social Services 1,052,795           423,381                   933,561         928,647            883,370          
Parks and Recreation & Library 3,064,262           1,474,786                3,147,065      3,147,272         3,265,001       
Fringe Benefits & Liability Insurance 6,463,291           4,644,618                7,838,098      7,381,365         7,988,170       
Operating Transfers 8,387,602           3,972,186                4,104,927      3,972,186         636,956          
Total Board of Selectmen Operating Budget 33,862,757         18,026,230              31,679,397    30,541,003       28,740,677     

Debt Service 6,371,525           1,173,813                7,806,810      7,806,810         8,915,868       

Education 77,551,189         34,529,916              82,182,136    82,882,136       85,806,368     

Total General Fund Budget 117,785,471       53,729,958              121,668,343  121,229,949     123,462,913   

ACTUAL  BUDGET  ACTUAL PROJECTED  ESTIMATED 
REVENUE  REVENUE  REVENUE REVENUE  REVENUE 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - REVENUES FY 2023 FY 2024 12/31/2023 6/30/2024 FY 2025

Water Pollution Control Fund
Total Water Pollution Control Fund 4,793,285           4,212,824                3,819,382      4,481,794         4,318,233       

Residential Property Fund
Rental of Town Owned Property 99,951                77,100                     38,171           97,000              97,000            

Simsbury Farms Complex
Total Simsbury Farms Complex 2,678,825           2,548,091                1,184,470      2,541,291         2,855,485       

Total Special Revenue Funds 7,572,061           6,838,015                5,042,023      7,120,085         7,270,718       

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2024 FY 2024 FY 2025
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET 12/31/2023 6/30/2024 PROPOSED

Water Pollution Control Fund
Total Water Pollution Control Requests 4,249,997           5,771,929                3,943,665      5,478,872         4,808,496       

Residential Property Fund
Total Residential Properties 59,147                47,122                     24,893           41,170              55,827            

Simsbury Farms Complex
Total Simsbury Farms Complex 2,680,590           2,918,370                1,703,993      2,758,476         2,884,828       

Total Special Revenue Funds 6,989,734           8,737,421                5,672,551      8,278,518         7,749,151       

Change 

TOWN OF SIMSBURY
BUDGET SUMMARY

1



FY2025 CAPITAL Requested  General Other 
& NONRECURRING FUND BUDGET 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25  Fund /State Grants

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
BOARD OF SELECTMEN TOTAL 416,250            416,250                 416,250       416,250          2,485,794     422,250        2,063,544    

BOARD OF EDUCATION
BOARD OF EDUCATION TOTAL 570,500              550,300                   550,300         550,300            1,250,300       690,300           560,000         

TOTAL CAPITAL & NON-RECURRING 986,750              966,550                   966,550         966,550            3,736,094       1,112,550        2,623,544      

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FY 2025
Financing

Memorial Pool Redesign 150,000$            Cash
Sidewalk Reconstruction 223,400$            Bonds
Town Hall Rooftop Units 275,000$            Bonds

Municipal Site and Safety Improvements (Town Hall) 460,000$            Bonds
Barn and Facility Repairs - Wolcott Road 275,000$            Bonds

Dam Evaluation & Repairs (Stoddard Dam Breach) 171,000$            Bonds
District Network Infrastructure 350,000$            Bonds

SHS - Auditorium & Amphitheater Improvements 400,000$            Bonds

Tootin Hills - Replace Roof 1,120,000$         Bonds/Grants

Public Works Truck Replacement and Plow 266,220$            Cash

Old Drake Hill Road Flower Bridge Rehabilitation - Supplemental* 2,646,000$         Cash

Highway Pavement Management 1,600,000$         Cash/Grants/Bonds

Simsbury Meadows Performing Arts Center Bandshell Addition 2,782,881$         Grants/Cash
Tariffville Connection - East Coast Greenway Gap Closure 450,000$            Grants/Cash

Sewer Replacement - Pine Hill 200,000$            Sewer Use

TOTAL PROPOSED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 11,369,501$       

FY2025
 Charge -Back Against 

2



Board of Finance 
TOWN OF SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 

REGULAR MEETING  
Tuesday, March 5, 2024, at 5:45 P.M. 

In Person Meeting /Simsbury Community Media Live Stream 
 
PRESENT:  
Lisa Heavner, Art House, Robert Helfand, Todd Burrick, Mike Doyle, and Art Wallace  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  
Amy Meriwether, Director of Finance; Matt Curtis, Superintendent; Jeff Tindall, Board of 
Education Chair; Jen Batchelar, Board of Education Vice Chair; Tara Willerup, Board of 
Education; Sue Lemke, Assistant Superintendent for Teaching & Learning; Neil Sullivan, 
Assistant Superintendent for Administration; Jason Casey Director of Infrastructure & 
Technology; Melissa Appleby, Budget Director; and Wendy Mackstutis, First Selectman. 
 
Call to Order - Establish Quorum 
Ms. Heavner called the meeting to order at 5:45 P.M.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
All present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
Public Audience 
Ms. Heavner opened the floor to Public Audience. 
Lori Boyko, 15 Oakhurst Road, spoke about her concerns with the overage in the Board of 
Education budget.  She said the town needs to halt their increases.  She spoke about reducing the 
20% ($17M) of the budget that is flexible and also about reducing the number of administrators 
or teachers in order to reduce costs. 
 
Presentation: Board of Education Fiscal Year 2024/2025Budget  
Mr. Curtis presented the proposed Board of Education budget for FY 2024/2025 with an overall 
number approved by the Board of Education of $86,270,668, which is an increase of 4.97% over 
last year’s operating budget. He continued with the presentation stating how the Board came to 
that number and how they approached balancing fiscal reality and educational needs.  He 
provided comparable data with peer communities and added their numbers are in line with the 
other districts.  He reviewed the budget process and the various budget reduction key drivers 
they used to come to their overall final number.  He then went through the main line items and 
the market driven increases with transportation being their top challenge.  
 
Mr. Curtis reviewed budget deficit drivers and spoke about special education State 
reimbursements.   
 
Mr. Curtis spoke about their Regular and Special Educational staffing needs and talked through 
reallocations and reductions their Board is proposing.  He also spoke about the services they are 
legally obligated to provide.   
 
The Board asked questions which were addressed and elaborated on by Mr. Curtis.  Ms. Lemke 
addressed the Special Education costs and the increased volume in students.  Ms. Heavner 
thanked Mr. Curtis and his team for working so diligently on the budget.  
 

3



Simsbury Board of Finance 
March 5, 2024, Regular Meeting 

 2 

Further discussion followed on transportation costs and processes.   
 
Mr. Casey presented the proposed Capital Improvement Plan which included 4 items.  He gave 
an overview of the projects, their costs, and the reasons they are included.  The Board asked 
questions which Mr. Casey addressed.   
 
Finance Director’s Report 
Ms. Meriwether presented on the Finance Directors Report noting supplemental appropriations 
totaled $131,000 at this point in time, which is well below the 3% budget cap.   
 
She reported on the Grants and Awards, noting one update that the-risk rural road speed 
enforcement grant which was just approved for $15K.   
 
She reported that the consultants working with the Assessor’s office started to interview 
department staff in relation to the current policies, procedures, and practices and they are moving 
along with the next phase of the performance audit.   
 
Ms. Meriwether reported the financial summary as of January 31, 2024 nothing they are 
expecting Revenues to come in over budget by about $3.3M and Expenditures under budget by 
about $940K.  Ms. Heavner had a question on the percentage of the Public Works budget and 
Ms. Meriwether said she will follow up and get back to her.   
 
Budget Discussion 
Ms. Heavner gave an overview of the budget stating if there are no changes to the approved 
Board of Education budget and the proposed Town Manger’s budget there will be an increase in 
spending by the town of $1.5M, and increase in education spending of $4.1M, and increase in 
Debt Service of about $1.1M, for a total increase of about $6.7M.  This represents a tax increase 
of 7.48%.  Ms. Heavner provided an overview of what it takes for a budget to balance, why they 
are out of balance, and what it will take to get more in balance.  She added it will take a 
combined effort to do that and provided some numbers as examples.   
 
Ms. Meriwether pulled up the budget modeling tool and worked on some possible scenarios to 
bring the numbers down.  Ms. Heavner explained that the savings at the end of the year goes to 
fund Capital for the following year and explained this is how Massachusetts does it.  They 
recommend about 3-5% of the budget is returned to fund capital.  The Board had comments and 
Ms. Heavner added they are monitoring neighboring towns projections.  
 
Ms. Heavner said one of the things the Board should give guidance on is holding future years 
Debt Service flat at $8.5M or $9M and not as a a percent of the budget.  Ms. Meriwether 
displayed the Capital Budget planning graph for FY24 – FY30 proposed by the Town Manager.  
A conversation followed on the Tax Collection Assumption rate and how to reduce costs and 
balance the budget.  Ms. Heavner asked for the Town and Board of Education to reduce their 
numbers further and Capital and Debt Service has to be reduced also. She added that she’s not 
sure they can get there but she asked for everyone to try.   The Board discussed further, and all 
agreed that targets should be set with the understanding that they may not be achieved.  Ms. 
Heavner asked for a Board of Education budget increase of 4.3%, a Board of Selectman budget 
increase of $3.5M, the Board of Finance is targeted to find $1.3M, Debt Service flat in the out 
years of $8.5 and $9M cap, and she asked to rework the CIP to show projects that fit within those 

4



Simsbury Board of Finance 
March 5, 2024, Regular Meeting 

 3 

parameters.  She asked everyone to weigh the risks with the cuts and come back with a lower 
budget number.   
 
Ms. Heavner asked Ms. Meriwether for an analysis of using more of the Health Reserve and 
what that would mean in terms of risk to the following year, and she asked for any other 
suggestions on mill rate stabilization without creating risk. Ms. Heavner asked the Board to add a 
line on the CNR project list to include a line item for Education to include the busses for $500K.  
Ms. Heavner asked for these revised numbers by the next meetings on March 19th or the 21st. 
Ms. Heavner received a unanimous consent on the proposed targets from the Board. 
 
The Board took a five-minute recess. 
 
Supplemental Appropriation – Dial-A-Ride Bus 
Ms. Meriwether summarized that staff are requesting a supplemental appropriation in the amount 
of $53,171 to cover the full purchase price of a Dial-A-Ride bus. An amount of $64,000 was 
approved during the FY 21/22 budget process and due to vehicle shortages and inflationary 
factors, the bus that is anticipated to be available by late spring is now expected to cost $117,171. 
The Connecticut Department of Transportation has committed to covering the full cost of the 
vehicle through a grant.   
 
MOTION: Mr. Burrick made a motion, effective March 5, 2024, to approve a supplemental 
appropriation in the amount of $53,171 for the purpose of purchasing a bus for Simsbury’s Dial-
A-Ride program. Mr. Helfand seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Supplemental Appropriation - Tariffville School Modulars 
Mr. Casey provided a summary of the appropriation. He noted the Tariffville School Modular 
classroom project was approved during prior budget processes in the amount of $850,000. The 
original scope of the project included a “rough grade” of the site on the exterior of the modular. 
During this process drainage issues were identified outside the scope of work that need to be 
corrected. If left in its current state, the site will experience significant ponding and erosion. The 
cost to correct the drainage issues is $18,000. 
 
The Board of Education will not be completing the Squadron Line air quality project and will use 
the savings from this project to cover the cost of the Tariffville School Modular project overage. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Burrick made a motion, effective March 5, 2024, to approve a supplemental 
appropriation for the Tariffville School Modular classroom project in the amount of $18,000 and 
transfer said funds from the CNR fund to the Capital Projects Fund to cover the cost of the 
overage. Mr. Helfand seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Appointment to the Simsbury Housing Policy Advisory Committee 
Mr. Doyle offered to join as a representative on the Simsbury Housing Policy Advisory 
Committee and Mr. Helfand volunteered to be an alternative.   
 

5



Simsbury Board of Finance 
March 5, 2024, Regular Meeting 

 4 

MOTION: Mr. Helfand made a motion, effective March 5, 2024, to appoint Mr. Doyle to the 
Simsbury Housing Policy Advisory Committee and to appoint Mr. Helfand as an alternative.  
Mr. Burrick seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approval of Minutes – February 13, 2024 
MOTION: Mr. Helfand made a motion, effective March 5, 2024, to approve the Minutes from 
February 13, 2023, as submitted.  Mr. House seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the 
motion passed unanimously.  
 
Adjourn 
MOTION: Mr. Burrick made a motion, effective March 5, 2024, to adjourn the meeting at 7:54 
P.M.  Mr. Helfand seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Marion Lynott 
Commission Clerk 

6


	ADP4F4F.tmp
	FY2025 Full Budget on File

	ADPC759.tmp
	FY2025 Full Budget on File




